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LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Regrstered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Lloyds TSBE General Insurance Limited (‘the Company™) 1s a company hmited by shares, domiciled and incorporated 1n the United
Kingdom The Company’s principal place of business 1s Tredegar Park, Newport, South Wales, NP10 §SB

Principal activity and business review

The principal activity of the Company 1s underwniting General Insurance, including household and domesuic all nsks msurance, creditor
insurance, pet insurance and accident and health insurance

The principal risks and uncertainuies facing the business are considered to be Insurance Risk, Operational Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity
Risk, Market Risk and Political Risk and uncertainties (see Note 4 to the financial stalements) These risks continue to be closely managed

during these times of uncertainty

Our business model positions us to maximise the capital benefits from risk diversificauon avaitable under the proposed Individual Capital
Assessment Plus (ICA plus) regime and ulimately Solvency 11

In preparanon for the introduction of the Solvency Il regime the msurance entities within Lioyds Banking Group plc's Insurance Diviston
were restructured 1n 2011 to bring ail relevant entities under Scottish Widows Group Lumted ("SWG") As a result SWG became the
holding company for the entities within the single mtegrated insurance business and 15 the ulimate insurance undertaking for solvency
purposes All subsidiaries of SWG, including the Group, are now managed within an overall nsk and capital management framework The
capital management framework will facilitate the monitoring and allocation of capital across the entiies owned by SWG, including those
within the Group

In future, when Solvency I 1s fully implemented, 1t 1s expected that the Insurance Division of Lloyds Banking Group plc will be able 1o
recognise the capital diversification benefits which will flow from the management of capital and nisk within this overall struciure
Although the implementation date for Solvency II within the European Umion has been deferred, the structure will enable the business Lo
operate effectively wathin the transitional arrangements that have been proposed

Profit before tax reduced n the year to £120m (2011 £174m) due to the cost of significant weather events expenenced throughout the
year and the continued run off of the creditor book

The household book continues to grow across all three brands (Lloyds TSB, Bank of Scotland and Hahfax)

Work (0 embed Solvency I1 continued throughout 2012 and the year culmnated with the successful application for Internal Model
Approval Process as part of the wider Insurance Group subnussion

The company continues to practice efficient balance sheet management with a focus on investment and lLiquidity management
opportunities, leveraging wider Lloyds Bankig Group plc’s skills and capabilities During 2012 excess liqudity was invested i less
liquid credit assets purchased from, or issued by, parties within Lloyds Banking Group plc through asset backed securities and covered
bonds All assets were acquired at their fair value Further details on the credit nisk and fair value measurement of these assets can be found
in Note 4

The business strategy and focus for 2013 and beyond continues to be profitably growing market share in chosen segments, developing
profitable insurance partnerships, improving margins through better customer management, rmproving service and efficiency, successfully
embedding Solvency 1l and continuing 1o wntegrate the Insurance businesses The directors consider that the Company’s principal activities
will continue unchanged 1n the foreseeable future

Results and dividends

The profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to £93m as set out 1n the statement of comprehensive income on
page 7 (2011 £130m)

Dividends of £32m (£0 52 per share) were paid during the year m respect of 2012 (2011 £132m (£2 14 per share}) The directors do not
recommend any further dividend 1in respect of 2012

Key Performance Indicators (*KPIs’)

The Company’s financial KPIs are net insurance premium revenue, claims and loss adjustment expenses and employee numbers al of
which are disclosed 1n the financial statements, together with the Company’s combined ratio The Company’s increased combined rauo of
81% (2011 71%) reflects increased claims costs on the property book due to the significant weather evenlts experienced throughout the
year The directors consider that the above are the key performance mmdicators which are appropnale to the principal acuvity of the
Company These, together with other metrics which cover customer, operational measures and capital, are included in the balanced
scorecard which 1s used to measure all aspects of the performance of the business




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Going Concern

The directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue 1 business for the foreseeable future and consequently the
going concern basis continues to be appropriate in preparing the accounts

Ihrectors
The names of the present directors of the Company are shown on page 1

The following changes in directors have taken place dunng the year

Appointed Resigned
R Harris 29 February 2012
K P Cracknetl 31 July 2012
G N Stewart 1 January 2012 5 October 2012
R !} M Bulloch 31 December 2012
A M Peck 24 January 2012
J Goford 24 January 2012
D J Walkden 24 January 2012
Dr N M Bryson 24 January 2012
Dr C A CM Schrauwers 14 May 2012
Lord N R Blackwell 1 September 2012
M A Fisher 19 September 2012
M G Culmer 31 October 2012
A M Parsons 9 November 2012

All directors have the benefit of a contract of indemmity, which 1s both a Quahfymg Third Party Indemnity Provision and a Qualifying
Penston Scheme Indemnity Provision This was in force during the whole of the year Directors no longer in office but who served on the
Board at any time 1n the year had the benefit of this contract of indemniuty during that period of service

Policy and practice on payment of creditors

The Company comphes with the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ pubhshed by the Department for Busmness Innovation and Skills (‘BIS’),
regarding the making of payments to suppliers Information about the ‘Prompt Payment Code’ may be obtammed by wvisiting
www promptpaymentcode org uk

I'he Company’s policy is to agree terms of payment with suppliers and these normally provide for settlement within 30 days after the date
of invoice, except where other arrangements have been negotiated It 1s the policy of the Company to abide by the agreed terms of
paymeni, provided the supplier performs according to the terms of the contract

As (he Company owed no amounts to trade creditors at 31 December 2012, the number of days required to be shown 1n this report, to
comply with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006, 1s mi (2011 nil)

Employees

Lloyds Banking Group plc 1s commutted to provtding employment practices and policies wiich recognise the diversity of the workforce
and ensure equahty for employees regardless of sex, race, disability, age, sexual orientation or religious behef

In the UK, Lioyds Banking Group plc belongs to the major employer groups campaigning for equality for the all staff, including
Employers’ Forum on Disability, Employers’ Forum on Age and Stonewall Lloyds Banking Group plc 15 also represented on the Board of
Race for Opportunity and the Equal Opportunities Commussion Involvement with these organisations enables Lloyds Banking Group plc
to wdentify and 1mplement best practice for staff

Employees are kept closely involved in major changes affecting them through such measures as team meetings, briefings, wternal
communtcauons and opinion surveys These meetings, bnefings and internal communications also serve to achieve a common awareness
of the financial and economic factors that affect the petformance of the company There are well established procedures, including regular
meetings with recognised unions, to ensure that the views of employees are taken into account 1n reaching decisions

Schemes offering share options or the acquisition of shares are available for most staff, to encourage their financial involvement in Lloyds
Banking Group plc Further details are set out in note 27




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Employees (continued)

Lloyds Banking Group plc welcomes applications from disabled persons and monitors the volume of disabled applicants on a monthly
basis Should a colleague become disabled 1n the course of their employment traiming and support shall be provided to accommodaie thesr
circumstances

A whole host of raiming and development 1s provided for all colleagues meluding disabled persons and 1s monitored through the
Company’s tramning facilities and all colleagues are encouraged and supported through the use of individual learming plans

Statement of directors’ responstbihties

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements m accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have prepared the
financial statements 10 accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion Under
company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required (o

select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether apphicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon have been followed, subject o any material departures
disclosed and explaned 1o the financial statements,

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
i business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the company and enable them 1o ensure that the financial
statememts comply with the Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the company’s website Legislation 1n the United Kingdom goverming
the preparation and dissemimation of financial statements may differ from legislation 1n other junisdictions

Risk

The Company’s exposure to financial risk relates to insurance, market, credit and liquidity nisks The Company 1s also exposed to
operational risk  The directors believe that there are proper procedures and controls 1n place, as explamned i Note 4 1n more detall, to
enable the Company to minimise these nisks

Charitable and Political Donations

The Company has not made any charitable or pohitical donations duning the year (2011 ml)

Statement of disclosure of information to auditors

In so far as each director m office at the date the directors report 1s approved 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a drector i order to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and 1o establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information This
confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted m accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

On behalf of the Board of Directors

QN

A M Parsons
Director
21 March 2013




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORI TO THE MEMBERS OF LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise
the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes 1 Equity and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 15 applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsiilities of directors and anditors

As explained more fully in Directors” Responsibilities Statement {set out on page 4) the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibihty 1s to audit and express an opinton on the
financial statements 1n accordance with apphicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

T hus report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not. n giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or 1o any other person to whom this report s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemenis sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from material msstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors and the overall presentanien of the financial statements In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Directors’ Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenial misstatements or 1nconsistencies we consider the impheations
for our report

Opmon on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the company s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts profit and cash flows for the year
then ended
have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union and
have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given i the Directors’ Report for the financia! year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report te you if in our
opinion

»  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recerved from branches not visited
by us, or

*  the financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns or

*  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

David Roper (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

21 March 2013




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note

ASSETS
Intangible insurance assets 5
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss

Collective Investment Schemes 6,7

Debt securities 6,7
Loans and recervables including insurance recervables 7.8
Reinsurance assels 9,12
Cash and cash equivalents 10
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to the Company’s equity holder
Ordnary share capital 11
Retamed earnings
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Insurance contracts 12
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 13
Trade and other payables 14
Deferred income tax 15

Income tax Lability
Total habihities

Total equity and habihities

The notes on pages 10 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements

The fiflapChl statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

A M Parsons
Director

2012 2011
61,411 70,614
289,529 334,781
178,461 50,998
243,432 337,999
10,352 13,821
128,921 53,068
912,106 861,281
61,700 61,700
259,088 197,989
320,788 259,689
425,895 452,584
6,604 2,578
65,172 79,773
20,514 21,436
73,133 45,221
591,318 601,592
912,106 861,281




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Note
Insurance contract premium revenue 17
Insurance contract premium ceded to reinsurers 17
Net premium revenue
Investment income 18
Net fair value gans on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 19
Total income
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses 20
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers 20
Net insurance claims
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 21
Expenses for administration 21
Total expenses
Results of operating activities and profit before income tax
Income tax expense 23

Profit for the year attnbutable to equity holder of the Company

Other comprehensive income for the year

Profit and total comprehensive mcome for the year attrtbutable to equity
helder of the Company

All the amounts above are 1n respect of continuing operations

The notes on pages 10 10 49 form an ntegra! part of these financial statements

2012 2011
572,149 586,786
(21,101) (25,594)
551,048 561,192

3,027 4,568
11,392 6,067
565,467 571,827
(192,851) (143,146)
1 1
(192,850) (143,145)
(218,461) (197,090)
(34,066) (57,214)
(445,377) (397,449)
120,090 174,378
(26,991) (44,247)
93,099 130,131
93,099 130,131




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise staled)

Note

Year ended 31 December 2011
At beginning of year

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attributable 10
equity holder for 2011

Dvidends paid 24

At end of year
Year ended 31 December 2012
At beginming of year

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to
equity holder for 2012

Dhividends paid 24

At end of year

11

i

Attributable to the equity holder of the Company

Share capital Retained Total equuty
earnings

61,700 199,858 261,558

130,131 130,131

- (132,000) (132,000)

61,700 197,989 259,689

61,700 197,989 259,689

- 93,099 93,099

. (32,000) (32,000)

61,700 259,088 320,788

Not all of the above amounts can be distributed to the equity holder of the Company due to statutory and regulatory requirements

Further details are given 1n Note 4 5

The notes on pages 10 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Regustered number 204373
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated by operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Net (addition)/disposal of collective investment schemes, equity and debt securities
Interest received

Dhividend and other income received

Net cash (used)/generated by investig activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Dhvidends paid to company equity holder

Net cash used by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The notes on pages 10 to 49 form an wntegral part of these financial statements

Note

25

24

10

10

2012 2011
175,646 55,775
) (35,214)
175,646 20,561
(73,024) 108,926
3,048 4,541
2,205 1,896
(67,771) 115,363
(32,000) (132,000)
(32,000) (132,000)
75,875 3,924
53,016 49,092
128,891 53,016




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated}

General information

Lloyds TSB General Insurance Limited underwrites general insurance nisks, including household and domestic all risks
insurance, creditor msurance, pet surance and accident and health insurance marketed pnimarily under the Lloyds TSB,
Bank of Scotland and Halifax brands and sold predominantly through the Lloyds Banking Group (“Group’) and corporate
partnerships  All contracts of insurance are wnitten 1n the Umited Kingdom

21

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounuing pohcies applied n the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies
have been consistentty applied o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basis of presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed
by the EU and 1n accordance with those sections of the Companies Act 2006 applicable under IFRS They have been
prepared under the historical cost cenvention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, investment property,
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets and financial habilities (including denivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates 1t
also requires management (o exercise 1ts judgement 1n the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies

All amounts in the notes are rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated
Changes in accounting pohcy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

Thete are no IFRSs or IFRIC nterpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2012 that would be expected to have a material impact on the Company

(b) New standards ,amendments and nterpretauons issued but not effective for the financial year beginning on or afier 1
January 2012 and not early adopted

¢ Amendment to IAS !, ‘Financial statement presentation’ regarding other comprehensive income The main change
resulting from these amendments 15 a requirement for entities to group items presented tn ‘other comprehensive mcome'
{OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustmenis) The amendments do not address which iems are presented in OCI

« IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by prowviding a precise
definition of fair value and a sigle scurce of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs
The requirements, which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the use of far value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use 1s already required or permutied by other
standards within IFRSs or US GAAP

10




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise staled)

22

Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) New standards and interpretanons not yet adopted (continued)

« [FRS 9, ‘Fmancial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recogmtion of financial assets and
financtal habilittes {FRS 9 was i1ssued 1n November 2009 and October 2010 It replaces the parts of 1AS 39 that
relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments  1FRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified
nto two measurement categories those measured as at far value and those measured at amortised cost The
determmnation 1s made at inial recogmuien  The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing
its financial mstruments and the contractual cash flow charactenistics of the mstrument  For financial habilities, the
standard retatns most of the 1AS 39 requirements The main change 15 that, in cases where the fair value option 1s
taken for financial habilities, the part of a far value change due to an entity's own credit nisk 1s recorded 1n other
comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismaich  The Company
15 yel to assess [FRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 9 no later than the accounting petiod beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, subject to endorsement by the EU The Company will also consider the impact of the remamimg
phases of IFRS 9 when completed by the International Accounting Standards Board

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Company

(c) Measurement bases used in the preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements are presented in Sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand They are prepared on the huistorical cost
basis

Non-current assets are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estumates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, labihiies, income and expenses The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabihties that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlymg assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revsions to accounting estimates are
recogmised in the pertod n which the estimate 15 revised 1f the revision affects enly that period, or in the period of the revision
and future peniods 1f the revision affects both current and future periods

Consohdation of subsidianes has not been undertaken as the Company forms part of Lloyds Banking Group, which prepares
a group set of consolidated financial statements under IFRS

Segment reporting

As an unhisted company (wholly-owned by Lloyds Banking Group plc), the Company 1s not required to disclose segmental
mformation

11




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
{All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

2 Summary of sigmificant accounting poheies (continued)
23  Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and loans and receivables The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assels were acquired
Management determines the classification of 1ts financial assets at mitial recogmiion

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company designates all its equity and debt securnities, including collective investment schemes, at fair value through
profit or loss on nception

Financial assets designated as at far value through profit or loss at wnception are those that are managed and whose
performance 1s evaluated on a fair value basis Information about these financial assets 1s provided internally on a fair value
basis to the Company s key management personnel The Company’s imvestment strategy 15 to vest m equity and debt
securities, and o evaluate them with reference to their fair values Assets that are part of these portfolios are designated upon
imtial recognition at far value through profit or loss (see Note 4 3 for additional detals on the Company’s portfolio

structure)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Company commu(s to
purchase or sell the asset Financial assets carried at fair vatue through profit or loss are mtially recogmsed at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the statement of comprehensive income  Financial assets are derecogmsed when the right to
recerve cash flows from the investments has expired or has been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership

The fair values of listed investments in an active market are based on current bid prices The fair values of unhisted collective
investment schemes are determmed by using the mark to market values of the individual underlying holdings of the schemes
If the market for a financial asset 1s not active, the fund manager establishes fair value by using valuation techniques These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantiatly the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models

(b} Loan and receivables including insurance recervables

Loans and receivables are recogmised utially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effeciive
interest method, less provision for impawrment Loans and recervables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market Recervables ansing from insurance contracts are also
classified m this category Loans and receivables are included 1n Loans and receivables mcluding insurance receivables on the
balance sheet and are reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review

12




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

24

Summary of sigmficant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets carned at amortised cost

The Company assesses al each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 15 impared  Imparrment losses are mcurred only if there 1s objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that have occurred after imtial recogmition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably esumated Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets 15 impaired includes observable data that comes to the altention of the Company
about the following events

n sigmficant financial difficuity of the 1ssuer or debtor,

(] a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency (n payments,

(1) it becoming probable that the 1ssuer or debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,

(v} the disappearance of an acuve market for that financial asset, or

V) observable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of

financial assets since the initial recogrition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets 1n the group, including

s adverse changes in the payment status of 1ssuers or debtors in the group of financial assets, or
»  national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets 1n the group of financial assets

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of imparrment exists for individually significant financial assets and of
no such individual impawrment exists 1t collectively considers impairments of groups of assets with similar credu nisks

[f there 15 obyective evidence that an imparrment loss has been incurred, the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 15 recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the

period

It in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recogmised (such as improved credit raung), the previously recogmised impawrment 1oss 15
reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal 18 recogmsed i the statement of comprehensive

income for the period

(by Non-Financal assets

Assets Lhat have an indefinite useful hife are not subject to amortisation and are lested annually for impairment  Assets that
are subjecl to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogmised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value n use For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
wdenufiable cash flows

13




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Regstered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued}
(All amounts in £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

25

26

27

Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued}
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposns held at call with banks, other short-term highly Liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, bank overdrafts where there 15 a nght of offset and accrued interest

Share capital

Shares are classified as equily when there 1s no obligation to transfer cash or other assets

Insurance contracts

The Company 1ssues wnsurance contracis The Company defines significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event which are significantly more than the benefits payable if the insured event were
to occur

(a) Recognition and measurement

All of the wnsurance contracts 1ssued by the Company are shori-term contracts categorised as household and domestc all
risks, creditor, accident and health, and pet

Household and domestic all risks insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties and their contents

Creditor contracts mamnly compensate the Company’s customers agamnst the cost to the insured of sustaining njury, suffering
sickness or infirmuty, suffening loss of income due to causes that may or may not be specified in the contract, where the
benefits payable under the contract relate to loans, credit card balances or other debts (excluding morigage indemnity)

Accident and health insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers with fixed pecuniary benefits against
costs of the nsured requiring health care for sickness, infirmity or injuries sustained  Accident and health imsurance risks are
not considered to be a matenal part of the Company’s msurance bustness

Pet insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers against the cost (o the insured of their pet sustaining an
njury or suffering sickness or mfirmity and incurring veterinary fees It also provides compensation for theft or death of the
ammal

For all of these contracts, premiums are recogmised as revenue proportionally over the perod of coverage Writien premuims,
gross of commussien payable to intermediartes, comprise the premivms on contracts entered nto (n a financial year,
regardless of whether such amounts may relate in whole or 1n patt 10 a later financial year, exclusive of msurance premium
tax and duties levied on premiums The amount of insurance premum tax due by the Company which has not been paid over
to Her Majesty s Revenue & Customs (HMRC) as at the balance sheet date 15 included as a liability under the heading “Trade
and other creditors” The portion of premium recerved on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance
sheet date 1s reported as the unearned premium reserve

Premiums written include adjustments for any differences between uneamned premiums recoerded mn prior years and amounts
ulumately received Qutward remsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premuums for the
inwards insurance business

Premiums collected by intermediaries, but not yet received, are assessed based on eshmates from underwriting or past
experience, and are included in premiums written
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Summary of significant accounting policies (contmued)

Insurance contracts (continued)

Claims and loss adjusiment expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurfed based on the
estimated hability for compensation owed to contract holders or thitd parties damaged by the contract holders  They include
direct and indirect claims settlement costs and anse from events that have occurred up o the balance sheet date even if they
have not yet been reported to the Company

The Company does not discount 1ts hiabilities for unpaid claims

The provision for outstanding claims represents the ultimate cost of setthing all claims, including direct and indirect claims
settlement costs, arising from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date  This provision comprises an amount for
the cost of claims noufied but not settled and for claims incurred but ot yet reported

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the date of the balance sheet and the refated claims settlement expenses
together with the anticipated remnsurance and other recoveries, 1s made on the basis of the best information currently
available, having regard, n particular, to past claims experience Subsequent mformation and events may result 1n the
ultimate liabihities being more than, or less than, the amount provided for the estimated net liabilities at a particular balance
sheet date ‘The estimates made are regularly reviewed 1n the hght of subsequent informatton and any resulng adjustments
are reflected i the earnings of the year in which the adjustments are made

(b) Deferred policy acquisition costs (“DAC™) — Intangtble insurance assets

Commussions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are directly refated to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitahised as an intangible asset (DAC), where they can be identified separately and measured reliably
and 1t 15 probable that they will be recovered All other cosis are recogmised as expenses when incurred  The DAC 15
subsequently amorttsed 1n line with earned premiums

(¢} Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date Liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract liabilities, net
of related DAC  In performng these tests current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
admumistraiton expenses as well as mvestment income from the assets backing such lhiabilities are used  Any deficiency 18
immediately charged to profit or loss mitially by wniting off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses
anising from hability adequacy tests Any DAC written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be remnstaled

(d) Remnsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Company with remsurers under which the Company 1s compensated for losses on one or more
contracts 1ssued by the Company and that meet the classification requirement for insurance contracts above are classified as
remnsurance contracts held Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder 1s another
insurer {(inwards rewnsurance) are included with insurance contracts

The benefits to which the Company s entitled under is remsurance contracts held are recogmsed as reinsurance assets
These assets consist of short-term balances due from remsurers as well as longer term receivables that are dependant on the
expected claims and benefits ansing under the related reinsurance contracts Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently wath the amounts associated with the reinsured msurance contracts and 10 accordance with the
terms of each rewsurance contract Reinsurance liabilities are primanly premiums payable for remmsurance contracts and are
recogmised as an expense when due

The Company assesses Is remsurance assets for impairment on a quarterly basis  If there 15 objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset 15 impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount
and recognises that impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive meome for the period  The Company gathers the
objective evidence that a remsurance asset 1s impaired usmg the same process adopted for loans and recewvables  The
imparrment loss 15 also calculated following the same method used for these financial assets These processes are described

in Note 24
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Insurance contracts (continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recogmised when due Premums are deemed receivable i full for the whole penod of an
msurance contract, upon nception These (nclude amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders

If there 1s objective evidence thal the isurance recetvable 1s impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the
mnsurance recetvable accordingly and recogmises the impairment loss in the stalement of comprehensive mncome The
Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable 15 impawred using the same process adopted for loans
and receivables The impairment loss 15 also calculated following the same method used for these financial assets  These
processes are described in Note 2 4

{f) Claims equalisation reserve

An equalisation reserve 1s held as an undistributable part of retained earmings as required under FSA rules  This reserve 15 not
allowed under IFRS and therefore 1s not included 1n the Balance sheet as a hability

Income taxes, ncluding deferred income taxes

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date Current income tax which 1s payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense m the period in which the profits
artse  Deferred 1ax s provided n full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of
assets and habihues and their carrying amounts 1n the financial statements Deferred lax 1s determined using tax rates that
have been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date that are expected (o apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred lax liability 1s settled Deferred tax assets are recogmsed where 1t1s probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised, and are not discounted
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Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

Pension and other post-retirement obligations

The Company’s ultimate parent company operates a number of group-wide post-reurement benefit schemes for employees
including those employees of the Company, including defined benefit and defined comtribution pension A defined benefit
scheme 1s a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on relirement, dependent on
one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary A defined coninbution plan 1s a pension plan nto which the
Group pays fixed contributions, there 15 no legal or constructive obhgation to pay further contributions

Full actuarial valuations of the Group’s principal defined benefit schemes arc carred out every three years with ntenm
reviews in the ntervemng years, these valuations are updated to 31 December each year by quahfied independent actuaries
For the purposes of these annual updates scheme assets are included al their fair value and scheme hablities are measured on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit credint method adjusted for unrecogmsed actuarial gains and losses The defined
benefit scheme liabilies are discounted using rates equivalent 1o the market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality
corporate bonds that are denommnated 1 the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms {0 maturnty
approximating to the terms of the related pension

The Company’s share of the resulting net surplus or deficit, determined on the basis of the Company’s cash contributions nto
the schemes for employee members (calculated 1n accordance with the scheme rules) is reflected in the Company’s balance
sheel (see Note 14) The Company’s statement of comprehensive income ncludes the Company’s share of current service
cost of providing pension benefits, the expected return on the schemes’ assets, net of expected administration costs, and the
interest cost on the schemes’ lLabifiies The Company’s share of actuarial gans and losses ansing from expenence
adjustments and changes 1n actuanal assumptions are not recogmsed unless the cumulative unrecogmsed gain or loss at the
end of the previous reporting period exceeds the greater of 10 per cent of the scheme assets or habilities (‘the cornidor
approach’) In these circumstances the excess 1s charged or credited to the siatement of comprehensive ncome over the
employees’ expected average remaimng working lives Past service costs are charged immediately 1o the statement of
comprehensive income, unless the charges are conditional on the employees remaiming in service for a specified period of
time (the vesting period) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

The Company’s balance sheet includes 1its share of the net surplus or deficit, being the difference between the fair value of
scheme assets and the discounted value of scheme habiliies at the balance sheet date adjusted for any cumulative
unrecogmised actuarial gains or losses Surpluses are only recognised to the extent that they are recoverable through reduced
contributions n the future or through refunds from the schemes

The Company recogmises the effect of material changes to the terms of the Group’s defined benefit pension plans which
reduce future benefits as curtailments, gans and losses are recogmised 1n the statement of comprehensive income when the
curtailments occur

The costs of the Company’s contributions towards the Group's defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income 1n the period in which they fall due
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2 10 Share-based compensation

212

213

214

[he Company’s ulumate parent company operates a number of group-wide equity-settled, share-based compensation plans 10
respect of services recetved from certamn of s employees The Company’s share of the value of the employee services
recerved m exchange for equity instruments granted under these plans is recogrused as an expense over the vesting period of
the nstruments, with a corresponding ncrease 1n equity This expense 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the
number of equity nstruments that are expected o vest The far value of equity mstruments granied 15 based on markel
prices, if available, at the date of grant In the absence of market prices, the fair value of the nstruments at the date of grant 1s
estimated using an appropriate valuation technique, such as a Black-Scholes option pricing model The determination of fair
values excludes the impact of any non-market vesting condittons, which are included i the assumptions used to estimate the
number of options that are expected (o vest At each balance sheet date, this estimate 1s reassessed and 1f necessary revised
Any revision of the ongnal estimate 1s recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive income over the remaining vesting
period, together with a corresponding adjustment to equity  Cancellations by employees of contributions to the Group's Save
As You Earn plans are treated as non-vesting condiions and n accordance with the revised IFRS 2 the Group recognises, in
the year of cancellation, the amount of the expense that would have otherwise been recogmised over the remamder of the
vestmg period  Modifications are assessed at the date of modification and any incremental charges are charged to the
stalement of comprehensive income over any remaining vesting period

Provisions, contmgent habihties and contingent assets

Provisions are recogmsed in respect of present obligations arising from past events where 1t 15 more hikely than not that
outflows of resources will be required to settle the obhigatnions and they can be reliably estimated

Contingent habilities are possible obligations whose existence depends on the outcome of uncertain future events or those
present obligations where the outflows of resources are uncertain or cannot be measured reliably Contingent liabilities are
not recognised n the financial statements but are disclosed unless they are remote

Contingent assets usually anse from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibihity of an mflow of
economic benefits Contingent assels are not recognised n financial statements since tus may result n the recognition of
income that may never be reahsed However, when the realisation of income 18 virtually certain, then the related asset 1s not a
contigent asset and 1ls recognition 1s appropriate A contingent asset 15 disclosed where an inflow of econonuc benefits 1s

probable

Revenue recognition — other than insurance contracts
Income received from fixed interest investments and deposits 1s accrued for on a day to day basis using the effective nterest
rate method  All such income 15 received and reported on a gross basis When an nterest bearing asset 15 impaired the

carrying amount 1s reduced (o 11s recoverable amount, being the estmated future cash flow discounted at the onginal effective
interest of the asset and the discount 1s unwound as investment Income

Dhividends are recerved and reported net of the associated tax and are accrued when the stock becomes ex-dividend within the
vear Dividend income 15 mcluded within ‘Net fair value gains on financial assets held at far value through profit or loss’

Net investment gains and losses on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss mclude both realised and
unrealised gains and losses Movements are recogmsed 1n the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1 the period which
they arise

Dividend distmbution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity shareholder 1s recognised in equity n the period in which the dividend 1s paid

Trade payables

Trade payables primanly relate to liabilities associated with insurance contracts and their accounting policies are disclosed 1n
Note 2 7 Trade payables are imtially recognised al fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost
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Cnitical accountung estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumpuons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabihies within the next
financial year Esumates and judgments are regularly evaluated and based on historical expenence and other factors,
including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

Outstanding claims
The estimation of the ultimate hability ansing from claims made under insurance contracts 15 the Company’s most critical
accounting estimate There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be considered in the esumate of the habihty that

the Company will ultimately pay for such claims

In particular, household and domestic all risks insurance policies are exposed to claims for subsidence The Company
subscribes to the Association of British Insurers (ABIy Subsidence “Change of Insurer” Claims Agreement which places an
obligation upon it to deal with subsidence claims

Estimation of the ultimate cost of substdence claims 15 complex It 15 difficult to know the mcurred date of a subsidence
claim, indeed the claim may have been incurred over a period of time rather than on one particular day Because of ths,
subsidence figures cannot rehably be sphit by accident month  Sigmficant factors that affect the trends that influence
subsidence performance stem mainly from the impact of the much drier weather conditions, tree root activity, the vpturn mn
the housing market and the additional extensive press publicity generatng anxiety and overreactions to muinor cracking Due
to this uncertainty, it 1s not possible to determimne the future development of subsidence claims with the same degree of
reliability as with other types of claim

Where there 1s nsufficient information to determine the required provision, slaustical techmques are used which take mnto
account the cost of claims that have recently been settled and make assumptions about the future development of the
outstanding cases Simular stanstical techmiques are used to determine a provision for claims incurred but not reported at the
balance sheet date  Finally, an allowance 1s made for the expected probability of a subsidence event occurning which could
give nise o such habihues

Unemployment claims dunng the year have continued to fali from their peak 1n 2009, though remain higher than prior to the
recession and reporting and payment patterns have been disrupted by this, by process changes and by the creditor book now
being in run-off The prevailing economic conditions are also expected 1o continue to produce a secondary, though smaller
impact within sickness claims The normal approach is to use past data to derive claims costs, bul in the past few years the
potential for patietns changing has been recognised and appropriate adjusiments have been made as detailed 1n Note 4 22 (b)

While management believes that the liabihity carried at year end 18 adequate, the application of statistical techaiques requires
significant judgment An increase of 10% n the cost of all claims would result in the recognition of an additional cost of
£13 417m net of remnsurance (2011 £16 041m) Simularly, an increase of 10% in the number of all claims would result in the
recogmtion of an additional cost of £14 711m net of remnsurance (2011 £17 317m) A 5% ncrease 1n the nflation rate of
claims would result in the recognition of an additional cost of £5 938m net of remsurance (2011 £5 690m)

41

Risk management

The insurance businesses are managed together as part of the Lloyds Banking Group One Insurance Division, as such nsk 1s
managed across all of the insurance compantes and not at the individual company level

The Company’s activities expose 1t 10 a vaniety of nsks The Company’s overall nsk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of non-life insurance and financial markets and seeks to mimmise potential adverse effects on the Company’s
financial performance

Risk governance

The Board of Directors bears tesponsibility for the management of risk 1n the Company including approval of documented
insurance and other prudential nsk policies and nisk appetite hmits as well as momitoring adherence to such policies Risk
management activities are delegated to the Insurance Risk Comnuttee which compnises members of the Insurance Executive
and 1o the relevant business area directors Oversight 1s camied out by the Insurance Group’s sk management function which
acts mdependently The Company complies with the Group risk management framework, full details of which are published
in the ultimate parent company accounts
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Rusk management (continued)
Insurance risk

The nisk under any one insurance contract 15 the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of
the resulting claim By the very nature of an msurance contract, this nisk 1s random and therefore unpredictable

The principal risk that the Company faces under 1ts msurance contracts 1s that the actval claims payments exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance habihties This could occur because the frequency or seventy of claims 1s greater than esumated
Insurance events are random and the actual number of claims will vary from year 1o year [rom the estimate established using
statistical techmques When submiting a claim, proof will be needed The Company follows any principles set up by the
ABI and FSA 1n respect of handling claims Claims nformation 1s retaned to help with the esimation of future claim
payments and risk pricing

Experience shows that the larper the portfolio of simular insurance contracts, the smaller the relative vaniability about the
expected outcome will be  In addition, a more diversified portfolio 1s less likely to be affected across the board by a change
in any subset of the portfolio The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to ensure that within each of
its risk categones sufficiently latge populations of risks are achieved to reduce the vaniability of the expected outcome

4.2.1 Household and domestic all risks
(a) Frequency and severity of claims

For houschold and domestic all nisks insurance contracts, chimatic changes appear to be giving nise to more frequent and
severe extreme weather events and their consequences Underwrniting limuts are 1n place to enforce appropriate risk selection
critenia For example, the Company can charge a premium appropnate to the nsk presented, dechne to underwrite certan
applications at sale, impose policy terms and conditions or higher excesses and, i the majority of cases, has the right not to
renew individual policies The Company also has the right 1o reject the payment of a fraudulent claim Insurance conlracts
also entitle the Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all cosis (1 e subrogation)

The Company has the right to re-price the nisk on renewal and also has the ability to impose excesses These contracls are
underwritten by reference to the teplacement value of the properties and contents insured Claim payment lunits are always
included for contents msurance to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the msured event  Costs of rebuilding properties
or replacement of, ot indemnity for, contents, are the key factors that influence the tevel of claims under these policies The
greatest hkelihood of sigmificant losses on these contracts anses from storm, fire, flood damage, freeze and subsidence The
Company has reinsurance cover for catastrophes to hmit losses n any one year from large single events  The maximum loss
for a single event up to £676 3m 1s £92 9m across Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance (2011 £767 1m 15 £85 2Zm
across Lloyds Banking Group General Insurance) The Company has discontinued the aggregate loss cover purchased n
2011 to miugate the effects of muluple events

The msutance nisk ansing from these contracts 1s not concentrated n any of the regions in the UK 1 which the Company
operates, and there 15 a balance between builldings and contents in the overall portfolio.

(b) Sources of uncertainty in the estumation of future claim payments

Household and domestic all nisks claims are analysed separately for each penl The development of accumulations of weather
claims 1n a single catastrophic event 1s analysed separately The shorter settlement period for non-subsidence/hablity claims
allows the Company to achieve a higher degree of certanly about the estimated cost of these claims, and relatvely small
Incurred but not Reported {!IBNR’) reserve 1s held at year-end However, the longer time needed (o assess the emergence of

a subsidence or hrability claim makes the estimation process more uncertain for these clams

Further information on risk management 1s disclosed n Note 12
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4 Risk management (continued)
4 2.2 Creditor
(a) Frequency and severity of claims

Significant perds and risk factors include unemployment, interest rates and the UK economic outlook generally The majonty
of financial loss business underwriten by the Company 1s payment protection, which has accident, sickness and
unemployment as 1ts main penis

The claim amount paid 1s fixed at the level of repayment and 15 capped for a maximum durauon for most contracts There are
waiting and exclusion periods during which no claim will be accepted In addition, in the case of sickness, any pre-exssting
health conditions will not be covered

The insurance Tisk ansing from these contracts 1s not concentrated n any of the regions 1n the UK 1n which the Company
operates A credit scoring system and procedures are n place to approve loans on which msurance will be offered

Unemployment claims during the year have continued to fall from their peak in 2009, though remain higher than prior to the
recession These changes coupled with changes (o wnternal processes to cope with increased demand have given rnise [0
distorted reporting and payment patterns so the Company has had to apply more judgement than usual to reflect that history 15
not as predictive m current circumstances  In addition the Company expects that the average duration of recurrmg claims will
conunue 1o be sensitive to prevailling economic conditions and the stressful conditions of the recession will also produce a
knock-on effect on the duration of sickness claims so an allowance has been made to allow for this 1n the reserves

(b) Sources of uncertainty 1n the eshmation of future claim payments

The Company estimation processes reflect all the factors that influgnce the amount and timing of cash flows from these
contracts The shorter settlement period for these claims would normally allow the Company 1o achieve a higher degree of
certainty about the estimated cost of claims but as stated above there remans greater uncertamnty this year even as claims
reduce, however, there 1s still a relatively small IBNR held at year-end

To reduce the uncertainty the Company has been modelling national economic data, notably unemployment inflows and their
relationship to creditor claims, as well as a detailed analysis of claim transittonal probabiliies  This latter data has been
showing a changing proportion of claimants transitioning to later ctaim duration periods Data from the recession n the early
1990’s and a range of scenarios was also used to assess the reasonableness of the reserve produced

The Company ceased writing new creditor business i 2010, consequently the book is now 1in run-off which mn uself
establishes an additional source of uncerlamty 1n analysing the behaviours of a dumimishing book against a histoncally stable
portfolio

(c) Unexpired nisk reserve

An unexpired nisk reserve (URR) 1s required to be estabhished when the unearned premium reserve belonging to an
identifiable segment of business 1s insufficient to cover the estimated cost of all future claims and expenses which will attach
to that unearned business

An analysis by segment was carried out and determined that an URR of £2 4m (2011 £2 4m) n respect of the single
premium business {(Loan Protection and Asset Fimance) was required  This was due to the expectation that future claims

experience would deteriorate as a result of anu-selection caused by the PP mis-selling judicial review

Further information on msurance nisk management 1s disclosed in Note 12
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4 Rusk management (contimued)
43 Fimanaal nsk

The Company is exposed to financial nsk through its financial assets, financial Liabilities, reinsurance assets and msurance
liabihties [n particular, the key financial risk 1s that mvestment proceeds are not sufficient to fund the obligauons ansing
from its msurance contracts The most important components of financial nisk are market nsk (primanly interest rale risk),
credit nisk and Liquichty risk

To manage these nsks, the Company has a defined nvestment pohicy which sets out limuts on the Company’s exposure to Its
mvestments Investment management meetings arc held regularly where the Company’s investments are reviewed Exposure
to ivestments are monstored by the finance function n order to ensure comphance with miernal and relevant external
regulatory limuts for solvency purposes and to allow additional measures Lo be taken ¥f limits are breached

4.3.1 Market nsk

Markel rtsk 1s the risk of reduction 10 earnings and/or value from unfavourable market movements This nisk typically arises
from fluctuations i market 1nterest rates (interest rate nisk) and market price (price risk), whether such changes are caused by
factors speaific to the indivrdual instrument or 1ts 1ssuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market

The Company’s objective 1n managing market nsk 1s to maximise retums from investments whilst ensuring regulatory
requirements are met and adequate financial secunty 1s mamtained on an ongoing basis

The Company is exposed to market nisk (including interest rate nisk) through its portfolio of mvestments, the majonty of
which are short term 11 nature The Company categonses its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as follows

e Collective investment schemes unlisted investments which are authorised and regulated by the Financial Services
Authority and fall under the EU directive on Underlakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities,

e Listed debt secunities 1ncludes sterling denominated floating rate notes, and

e  Unlisted debt securities assel backed securities and covered bonds which are not actively traded and are valued
using a discounted cash [low modet

An additional source of market risk 1s the musmatch between payout patierns of labilities and the assets backing those
liabiliwes However, tis component s a2 minor source of nisk for the Company because the majority of assets as well as
liabilities are of a short term nature

The market nisk 1n the investment portfolio 15 measured using ‘Value at Risk (VaR) methodology VaR is defined as the
maximum loss over a given time horizon, with a defined low probabiity that the actual loss on the portiohio will be larger A
5% VaR with a one year time horizon 1s used to set the Company’s tolerance to market nsk A loss equal to VaR 13 the worst
case loss considered for the management of market nisk

The VaR calculation allows for dependencies between the values of investments mn the porifolio Its inputs include 15 years of
historic movements 1n the values of appropriate market indices and interest rates

The VaR for the Company as at 31 December 2012 was £16 6m (2011 £5 5m) The VaR has mcreased due to the impact of
purchasing unlisted debt secunities during the year

(a) Interest rate risk

[nterest rate risk 1s the nsk that the value of future cash flows of a financial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes 1n
interest rates and the shape of the yield curve

The Company underwrites predominanily short-term insurance habilities with durations of less than 5 years, which are not
directly sensiive 1o the leve! of market 1nterest rates as they are undiscounted and contractually non-interest bearing

2012 2011

A change of nterest rate by +/- 1% would have the following effect on the value

of the Company’s investments -/+ £0 3m -/+£03m
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4 Risk management (continued)
4 3 1 Market nsk (continued)

(b) Price Risk

The Company’s price Tisk exposure relates to financial instruments whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes m
market prices, or as a result of changes to assumptions 1 pricing models when these are used to value istruments which are
not actively traded

Such changes in market values or pricing model valuations of a financial 1nstrument can anse from factors specific to the
individual instrument or 1ts 1ssuer or factors affectng all instruments traded in the market

The Company’s price risk policy requires 1t to manage such risks by setting and monttoring objectives and consiraints on
investments, diversificanon plan, Limits on nvestment 1n each country, sector and market, and careful and planned use of
denvative instruments The price risk on financial mstruments can be actively managed through the use of derivative financial
imstruments to mitigate the risk of adverse market movements The Company did not exercise this option al any powt in the
year and has none 1n force at the year end

The Company holds investments approptiate to the iming, amount and level of uncertamty of its insurance contract habihties
as shown i the following table, which reconciles the balance sheet to the categories used i the Company’s management of
financial nisk

2012
Other
financial
Insurance assets & Other assets
coniracls hiabilities & liabalities Total
Intangible insurance assets 61,411 - - 61,411
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Schemes — unlisted 69,878 219,651 - 289,529
Debt securities — unlisted - 178,461 - 178,461
Insurance recetvables 243,316 - - 243,316
Other receivables - 116 - 116
Reinsurance assets 10,352 - - 10,352
Cash and cash equivalents 59,570 69,351 - 128,921
444,527 467,579 - 912,106
Insurance contracts and payables 425,895 - - 425,895
Provisions for other habiliies and charges - - 6,604 6,604
Trade and other liabilities 18,632 36,856 9,684 65,172
Deferred income tax - - 20,514 20,514
Income tax Liability - - 73,133 73,133
444,527 36,856 109,935 591,318
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4 Risk management (continued)

4 3.1 Market risk (continued)

2011
Other
financial
Insurance assets & Other assets

contracts habilities & liabilities Total
Intangible 1nsurance assets 70,614 - - 70,614

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Scheme - unlisted 103,791 230,990 - 334,781
Debt secunities - listed 50,998 - - 50,998
Insurance recewvables 234,106 - - 234,106
Other receivables - 103,893 - 103,893
Reinsurance assets 13,821 - - 13,821
Cash and cash equivalents 222 52,846 - 53,068
473,552 387,729 - 861,281
Insurance contracts and payables 452,584 - - 452,584
Provisions for other habilities and charges - - 2,578 2,578
Trade and other habilities 20,968 46,694 12,111 79,173
Deferred income tax - - 21,436 21,436
Income tax liability - - 45,221 45,221
473,552 46,694 81,346 601,592

In 2012 a related party balance within other loans and receivables of £14 945m (2011 £13 293m) has been reclassified as a
related party balance within recervables ansing from insurance and reinsurance contracts to align with other Group entities to
provide a clearer presentation The prior year numbers have not been restated for this presentation

43 2 Credit nisk

Credit r1sk 15 the nisk of loss 1f another party fals to perform its obligations or fails to perform them in a imely fashion
Management considers that the Company’s only significant potental credit risk exposures are from remsurance and financial
assets held at fair value through profit or loss Adequate and effective procedures are in place to mitigate these exposures and
all the other sources of credit nsk identfied by the business Credit nisk exposure from insurance receivables 15 not
considered (o be significant, as the nsk 1s diversified across a large volume of policyholders for all products and the amount

of unpaid premiums at the balance sheet date is not sigmificant

(a) Reinsurance credit nsk

The Company’s nisk transfer policy addresses the management of remnsurance credit nisk and 15 authonsed by the insurance
Finance Capital Committee (IFCC) Only reinsurers with a mimimum credit rating of “A-” will be accepted The Company
also requires a ‘special termunation clause” i all contracts allowing a remsurer to be replaced mid-term, in the event their
secunity raung 1s downgraded below an acceplable level duning the period of the remnsurance contract

Reinsurance claims recoveries management mformation 1s supplied to the actuarial function by the rewnsurance broker The
Company’s actuanal function momitors the status of claims made on resnsurance policies
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4 Rusk management (continued)
4 3.2 Credit nsk (continued)
{b) lnvestment credit nsk

The Company’s investment policy sets rules limiting exposure to concentrations of risk as a result of aggregation of exposure
lo any single counterparly Selting hits mutigates such credit risk exposure and also ensures comphiance with regulatory
requirements Surplus funds are invested by utihsing Scotush Widows fund managers and their adherence to the exposure
iumut rules 15 momitored regularly by the Insurance Shareholder Investment Management Commitee (ISIM) Credit default
nsk is the most significant financial risk, but this 1s mitigated by a very cautious approach to counterparty risk

The concentration of credit risk has changed compared to the prior year In line with Company strategy to increase investment
returns whilst mamtaining an acceptable level of credit risk, the Company purchased unhsted debt securities during the year
The Company continues to take a prudent and cautious approach to investment The table below shows the Company’s
financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss spht by credit raung using Moody’s or equivalent

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss: 2012 2011

Debt secunties — hsted (Note 7)

AA - 44979

A - 6,019

Debt secunties — unhsted

AAA 178,461 -

Total assets bearing credit risk 178,461 50,998

Collective Investment Schemes - unhsted

AAA 231,385 281,233

Unrated 58,144 53,548
289,529 334,781

The physical assets (1e assets other than derivatives) m which the collective investment schemes nvest predomunantly
consist of fixed 1nterest securities, index hinked securities, money markel instruments, cash and deposits

All remaining histed debt securiies matured during the year The investment n collective investment schemes was reduced
during the year as funds were withdrawn from the Investment Cash Fund which has an *AAA” credit rating and mvested 1n
unlisted debt securities which also alt have ‘AAA’ credit ratings  The unrated collective investment scheme 1s an Absolute
Return Bond Fund

4.3.3 Liquudity nsk

The main objective of the Company’s hquidity risk policy 15 to ensure that all funds within the Company that serve to fulfil
habilities are available 1n sufficiently iquid form to settle liabilities as and when they fall due Liquidity risk 15 considered to
be small, as the Company primanly holds financial assets for which there 15 a iqurd market and that are readily saleable to
meet hquidity needs together with short term cash deposits which are viewed as readily available at short notice The
Company also holds unhsted debt securities which have maturities of longer term duration (35 years maximum) The
Company routinely reviews its capital and hquidity posttion and only invests excess liquidity (where balances exceed a level
tequired to settle insurance claims and other creditors including an nternal buffer) in longer term assets As such the assets do
not carry any significant hquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company’s insurance and financial liabilities 1nto relevant matunity groupings The analysis of
insurance liabiities 1s an estimated maturity analysis of the amourl recogmsed 1 the balance sheet as permutted by IFRS 4
For financial hiabilities, the groupings are based on the period remaining at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date
The amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted
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4 Risk management (continued)

4 3 3 Ligmdity nsk (continued)

Upto3 Between3and Between 1 and Over 2
months 12 months 2 years years Total
At 31 December 2012
Short-term 1nsurance contracts 61,854 65,611 19,018 12,450 158,933
Trade and other payables 55,488 - - - 55,488
117,342 65,611 19,018 12,450 214,421
At 31 December 2011
Short-term msurance contracts 62,257 76,125 29,595 7,593 175,570
Trade and other payables 67,662 - - - 67,662
129,919 76,125 29,595 7,593 243,232

Short-term msurance contracts include claims reported and loss adjustment expenses, claims incurred but not reported and

unexpired risk reserve See Note 12

4.3 4 Operational nsk

The Company 15 exposed to the nisk of reductions n earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from
inadequate or failed internal processes and systems, or from people related or external events

There are a number of categories of operational risk

s People risk

The nsk of reductions i earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from iappropriate staff
Loss can also occur through failure to recruil, retain, train,

reward and mcentvise appropnately skilled staff to achreve business objectives and through failure to take appropriate

behaviour, industrial action or health and safety 1ssues

action as a result of staff underperformance

s Orgamsational Infrastructure

Includes all business processes that are "inlernally facing" 1 e operate between business areas

+»  Fmnancial Crime — External and Internal Fraud

The nisk of reductions 1 earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, associated with financial crime
and failure to comply with related legal and regulatory obligations, these losses may (nclude censure, fines or the cost

of litigation

s Money Laundering & Sancnons

Includes all activity related to money laundening, sanctions and counter terronsm

+ Legal & Regulatory

The risk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from failing to comply with the
laws, regulations or codes applicable, or changes theremn

Customer Treatment
The nsk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from mappropriate or poor

customer {reatment

Security
The nisk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulung from theft of or damage

to the Group’s assets, the loss, corruption, mususe or theft of the Group's information, assets or threats or actual harm to
the Group's people

Supplier Management
The nisk of reductions 1n earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from all acuvity related

to the agreement and management of services with other parties

IT Systems
The nsk of reductons n earmings and/or value, through all acuvity related o the development, delivery and

maintenance of effective IT solutions

26




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
{All amounts n £ thousands unless otherwise staled)

4 Risk management (continued)
4 3.4 Operational risk {continued)

+« Change
The risk of reductions 1 earmings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from change tmitiatives failling to
deliver (o requirements, budget or imescale or failing to implement change effectively or realise the desired benefits

» Customer Process
The nisk of reductions m earmmgs and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, resulting from madequate or
faled internal processes and systems that are "externally facng”, 1e provide a service for external "customers”,
including counterparties, corporate clients ¢tc

Exposures

The main sources of operational fisk relate to uncertainties crealed by the changing business and n particular the legal and
regulatory environment in which the Company operates The Company’s legal and regulatory exposure 15 driven by the
significant volume of current legislation and regulacon with which 1t has to comply, along with new legslation and
regulation which needs 10 be reviewed, assessed and embedded into day to day operational and business practices

Risk Framework

There are clear accountabilittes and processes 1n place for reviewing new and changing requirements The Company has a
nominated ndividual with ‘comphance oversight’ responsibility under FSA rules The role of this individual 15 to advise and
assisl management to ensure they maintam a control structure which achieves comphance with the rules and regulations, to
which the Company 1s subject, and to momtor and report on adherence to these rules and regulations

The Company has a comprehensive and consistent operational risk management framework for the umely rdentificaion,
measurement, momitoring and control of operational nisk This framework 1s entirely aligned to that of the Lloyds Banking
Group to which 1t belongs

Miganon
T'he Company’s operational risk management framework consists of five key components
1 ldenutification of the key operational nisks facing a business area,
2 Evaluation of the effectiveness of the control framework covering each of the key nisks to which the business area 1

exposed,
3 Evaluation of the non-financial exposures (e g reputational nsk) for each of the key nisks to which the business area

1s exposed,

4  For material risks identtfied, an estimate of 1he exposure to financial losses that could result within the coming
financial year, together with an estimate of losses 1n a stressed environment,

5 For material nisks identified an estimate of exposure to high impact, low frequency events through Scenano
Analysis

Monuoring

‘The Company’s risk exposure 15 reported through a monthly Consolidated Risk Report {(‘CRR’) that 15 then aggregated at
dwisional level and reported to group risk where a group-wide report 1s prepared The CRR 1s prepared monthly and
discussed at the Operational Risk Comnuttee where any particular concerns may be escalated further to the division or group

risk functions

The Company has adopted a formal approach to operational risk event escalation This mvolves the 1dentification of an
event, an assessment of the materiahty of the event 1n accordance with a nisk event impact matnx and then the appropnate
escalatton procedures

Conduct Risk
The nisk of regulatory censure and/or a reduction in earnings/vatue, through financial or reputational loss, from mappropriate

or poor customer outcomes Asscciated nisks include poor product destgn and development, customer advice, customer
service and customer complamt handling

Customer treatment and how Lloyds Banking Group as a whole manages 1ts customer relationships affects all aspects of the
Group’s operations and 1s closely aligned with achievement of Lloyds Banking Group’s strategtc viston to be the best bank
for customers There remams a high level of scrutiny regarding the treatment of customers by financial institutions from

regulatory bodies, the press and poliicians

Conduct risk 1s centrally managed by Lloyds Banking Group on behalf of the Company
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44

Risk management (continued)
4.3.5 Pohtical risk and uncertamties

Pohtical nisk 15 the nisk of reductions m earmings andfor value through financial loss from a changing political
environment In the absence of a defimtive, agreed and fully-implemented solution to the Eurozone cnsis there continues to
be some nisk that ongoing economic uncertainty 1n Europe and the availability of credit could cause a return to recession in
the United Kingdom and [reland

A Scottish Independence referendum 15 due 1o be held 1n 2014 A Lloyds Banking Group Scottish Constitutional Change
Sieering Group, with cross-Group representation, has been set up to assess any potential impact for the business

Fair value luerarchy of financial assets

[FRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techmques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable
or unobservable Observable mputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, unobservable inputs reflect the
Company’s assumptions These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchanges Although unlisted, all the collective imvestment schemes 1n which the Company
has invested have a price 1n an active market and are therefore classified as Level 1

Leve! 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, erther directly
(that 1s, as prices) or mdirectly (that 1s, derived from prices) There 15 not considered (0 be an active market for the
Company’s hsted debt secunities, which are all classified as Level 2

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) This level
mcludes equity mvestments and debl istruments with sigmificant unobservable components The Company’s unlisted debt
secunities are all classified as level 3

The unhsted debt securities are not actively traded and are valued using a discounted cash flow model The valuation
mcorporates credit nsk spreads, which are generally based on observable spreads on similar securities, plus a hquidity
premium Assumptions are made about the expected hife of the securities, reflecting prepayment behaviour The effect of
applying reasonably possible alternative assumptions to the value of these unlisted debt securities would be to decrease the
fair value by £1 8m (2011 £mil) or increase 1t by £2 8m (2011 £nil)

This uerarchy requires the use of observable market data when available The Company considers relevant and observable
market prices in its valuations where possible

The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value at 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tolal
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Collecuive [nvestment Scheme — unhsted 289,529 - - 289,529
Debt securities — unhsted - - 178,461 178,461
289,529 - 178,461 467,990
At 31 December 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fiancial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Scheme — unhisted 334,781 - - 334,781
Debt securities — listed - 50,998 - 50,998
334,781 50,998 - 385,779
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45

Rusk management (continued)
Fair value aerarchy of financial assets (continued)

The table below shows movements mn the assets measured al fair value based on valuation techniques for which any
sigmficant input 16 not based on observable market data (level 3 only)

2012 2011
At 1 January - -
Net gamns recogmsed within net fair value gamns on financial assets held at fair
value through profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income 742 -
Additions 179,778 -
Disposals {2,059) -
At 31 December 178,461 -
Total gans for the period included in the statement of comprehensive income for
assets held at 31 December 676 -

Capital nsk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are
- to have sufficient further capital to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
conlinue (o provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders, and
- to comply with the insurance capital requirements set out by the FSA n the UK

In order to maintain or adjust the capital siructure (0 meet the objectives above mcluding ensuning sufficient capital 1s held 1o
meet capital requirements, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the shareholder, return caputal to the
shareholder, 1ssue new shares, sell assets or raise debt which can be included as available capual for capital requirement
purposes under FSA regulations

Consistent with other nsurers 1 the non-life insurance industry, the FSA imposes two separate capital requirements on the
Company of any sigmificance the Mimmum Capital Requirement (MCRY) as defined in FSA regulations and reported publicly
in the Company’s Annual FSA Return, and Individual Capital Guidance (ICG), which 15 entity-specific and 18 derived using a
more risk-related approach as also set out in FSA regulations The ICG 15 calculated and updated by the FSA following its
reviews on a regular basis of the Company’s own individual capital assessment

For ICG purposes, total available capital 1s calculated as “Total equity” as shown in the balance sheet For MCR purposes,
total available captal 1s calculated as ““Iotal equity” as shown in the balance sheet net of the non-chstributable equalisation
reserve which 1s shown n this note below

The Company complied with all externally imposed capital requirements to which it was subject throughout the reporting
period

Retamed earmings represent the amount available for dividend distribution to the equity shareholder of the Company except
for £122m (201! £6 3m) unrealised gains on financial assets held at fair value which 1s not distributable and £68 7m (2011
£64 3m) which 15 not distributable and must be kept in compliance with the solvency capital regulations that require the
Company lo retain this as an equalisation reserve  The amount n the equalisation reserve can be utilised when the Company
has suffered insurance losses in excess of levels set out in the relevant solvency capital regulations
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5 Intangible insurance assets

Intangible assels relate 1o the deferred acquisition costs of acquiring new and renewing existing insurance contracts

Deferred acquisition costs
At 1 January

Additions
Amortisation through income {Note 21}

At 31 December

Realisable within one year
Realisable after one year

2012 2011
70,614 83,909
209,258 183,795
(218,461) (197,090)
61,411 70,614
61,238 68,985
173 1,629

In 2012 marketing and certain other expenses of £30 541m {2011 £29 658m) have been reclassified from “Expenses for
administration’ {(which has been re-named from the previous title of “Expenses for marketing and administrauon’ accordingly)
to Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts’ to align with other Group entities to provide a clearer presentation
‘Additions’ and “Amorusation through ncome” above have increased accordingly The prior year numbers have not been

restated for this presentation

6 Financial instruments by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied (o the hine items below

31 December 2012

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Schemes — unhsted
Debt secunties — unhsted

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total

31 December 2011

Assets

Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Scheme — unlisted
Debt securities - hsted

Amounts due from related parties

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liablities
Trade and other payables
Total

Financial assets at fair value Loans and
through profit or loss recervables Total
289,529 - 289,529
178,461 - 178,461
- 14,945 14,945
- 128,921 128,921
467,990 143,866 611,856
Other liabilities at
amortised cost Total
36,856 36,856
36,856 36,856
Financial assets at fair value Loans and
through profit or loss recelvables Total
334,781 - 334,781
50,998 - 50,998
- 103,872 103,872
- 53,068 53,068
385,779 156,940 542,719
Other liabilities at
amortised cost Total
46,694 46,694
46,694 46,694
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7 Financial assets

The Company’s financial assets are summarised by measurement category n the table below

2012 2011
Fair value through profit or loss
Collective Investment Schemes — unlisied 289,529 334,781
Debt secunties — hsted - 50,998
Debt securities — unhsted 178,461 -
Total financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 467,990 385,779
Loans and receivables including msurance receivables (Note 8) 243,432 337,999
Cash and cash equivalents 128,921 53,068
Total financial assets 840,343 776,846
Available within one year 662,134 776,846
Available after one year 178,209 -
The movements on financial assets held at fair value through profil or loss are detailed below
2012 2011
At 1 January 385,779 490,534
Fair value net gains (excluding net realised gains and losses) 1,670 2,849
Addinons 215,838 40,298
Disposals (sale and redemptions) (141,297) (147,902)
At 31 December 467,990 385,779
8 Loans and recesvables including insurance recervables
2012 2011
Receivables anising from insurance and reinsurance contracts
- due from contract holders 228,371 234,106
- due from related parties (Note 28) 14,945 -
Other loans and receivables
- due from related parties (Note 28) - 103,872
Prepayments 116 21
"Total loans and recervables including insurance recesvables 243,432 337,999
Available wathin one year 243,432 337,999

As at 31 December 2012 all overdue oans and receivables ansing from insurance conlracts were provided for i full
[n 2012 a related party balance within other loans and receivables of £14 945m (2011 £13 293m) has been reclassified as a

related party balance withun receivables arising from insurance and remsurance contracts o align with other Group entities to
provide a clearer presentation The prior year numbers have not been restated for this presentation

31




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Regisicred number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
{All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

9 Remnsurance assets
2012 2011
Retnsurers unearned premium 9,737 12,455
Rewnsurers’ share of claims reserves 615 1,366
Reinsurance assets 10,352 13,821
Available less than one year 10,180 12,987
Available greater than one year 172 834
All of the above amounts relate to household and domestic all risks coniracts of imsurance
10 Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
Cash at bank and 1n hand 69,321 52,794
Global Liquidity Fund 59,570 222
Total cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes 128,891 53,016
Accrued tnterest 30 52
Total cash and cash eguivalents 128,921 53,068

The Global Liguidity Fund 1s a managed ivestment fund investing in short term highly liquid investments, which together
with the Company’s financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, 1s managed by a related party and 212 has

been classified as a related party balance (Note 28)

Included 1n cash and cash equivalents are bank accounts totalling £69 343m (2011 £52 751m) placed with a pareat company

(Note 28)

The effective interest rate on cash and cash equivalents was 0 79% (2011 0 80%)

2011

61,700

1 Share capital
2012
Ordinary shares
AL 1 January and 31 December
Issued and fully pard — 61 7m shares of £1 each 61,700
61,700

61,700

The 1otal authonsed number of ordinary shares 1s 65 661 million (2011 65 661million) with a nominal value of £1 each

The ordinary shares of £1 each carry the night to receive dividends proposed by the direclors and the right to vote at general |

meetings Upon winding up, the ordinary shares carry the right to a return of caputal together with any surplus in retained

earnings or less any accumulated deficits
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12 Insurance habilhities and reinsurance assets

Gross

Short-term insurance contracts

- claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
- claims incurred but not reported

- unexpired nisk reserve

- unearned premiums

Total insurance habilities - gross

Recoverable from reinsurers
Short-term insurance contracts

- claims reported

- claims incurred but not reported
- unexpired risk reserve

- unearned premiums

Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities

Net

Short-term insurance contracts

- claims reported and loss adjustment expenses
- claims incurred but not reported

- unexpired risk reserve

- unearned premiums

Total insurance habihities — net

Payable within one year
Payable after more than one year

2012 2011
128,392 143,240
19,340 29,930
11,201 2,400
266,962 277,014
425,895 452,584
615 1,366
9,737 12,455
10,352 13,821
127,777 141,874
19,340 29,930
11,201 2,400
257,225 264,559
415,543 438,763
383,823 398,494
31,720 40,269

The gross claims reported, claims expenses liabilities and liabihity for claims mcurred but not 1eported are net of expected
recovenes from salvage and subrogaton The amounts for salvage and subrogation at the end of 2012 and 2011 are not

maternal

The unexpired risk reserve includes £8 8m (2011 £nil} 1n respect of the pet insurance business

121 Shert-term msurance contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity

The methodology and assumptions used m relation to determining the bases of the earned premium and elaims provisionmg
levels are derived for each individual underwritten product and contained within the appropriate soflware programmes of the
in-house policy underwriung system Assumptions are mtended to be neutral estimates of the most likely or expected

outcome (‘best estimates )

The levels, adequacies and assumptions used to determine these claims reserves are sel out in the Quarterly Reserving and

Claims Reports (QRR)

The report from the Head of Actuarial and recommendations are formally reviewed by the Claims and Reserving Commuttee

on a quarterly basis

An analysis of methodology and assumptions in calculating technical reserves 1s shown below for each sigmificant product

class
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121

Insurance habifities and reinsurance assets (continued)
Short-term nsurance contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity (continued)

12 1 1 Household and domestic all nsks

Significant penils and losses factors include accidental damage, escape of water, subsidence, public hability and adverse
weather The reserving methodology and associated assumptions are set out below

Qutstanding Claims Reserve (QCR

The aim of the OCR teview for household and domestic all risks 1s (o generate a best estmate weighted average OCR using
vanous actuanal techmgques including a chain ladder statistical projecion method applied to past claims paid, case esumates
and claims velume data for each peril separately Consideration 1s also given to the impact any change n claims processing
will have on the estimate  If considerable uncertainty exists, then an uncertainty provision will be identified and documented

within the reserving reports

Claims locurred But Not Reported Reserve (IBNR
The aim of the IBNR review 1s to assess the approprialeness of the IBNR factors used to set the IBNR reserve  To do this, a

chain ladder statistical projection method 1s apphied to past claims volume reported triangles

Major events such as storms or floods are treated separately using deveiopment patterns appropriate to that type of event In
addition, additional provisions are established for habilily and fire claims to reflect the additional volauility over and above

that seen 1n the available data

Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)
The UPR 1s calculated using a daily allocation method These are annual policies but the majority of policyholders pay
premiums by monthly instalments and accordingly a substantial part of the asset backing the UPR 1s future monthly

premiums

12 1.2 Creditor

Sigmificant perils and loss factors include unemployment, morbidity, mterest rates and the UK economic outlook generally
The vast majority of financial loss business underwritten by the Company consists of loan protection coveting accident,
sickness and unemployment The reserving methodology and associated assumptions for loan protection are set out below

Qutstanding Claims Reserve {OCR)

The OCR 1s calculated as the product of the number of active claims, the average duratton remaming and the monthly
repayment amount The average claim duration assumption 15 based on past experience of loan protection data adjusted for
the current economic condiions  The adjustment was made on a judgemental basts, taking into account the most recent data
and economic predictions as well as the data on simlar products in the early 90°s

Claims Incurred But Not Reporied Reserve (IBNR)

The IBNR 1s calculated 1n the same way as the OCR, though uses total duration An alternative reserving techmque, using
the chan ladder stausucal projection method applied 1o past claims data 1s used to provide an independent check on the
adequacy of the OCR plus IBNR

Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR)

Earned premiums are calculated on a basis lhat teflects the length of nme for which contracts have been n force and the
projected incidence of risk over the term of each contract

Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR)

An unexpired nsk reserve (URR) 15 required to be established when the uncarned premium reserve belonging o an
idenufiable segment of busmess 1s insufficient to cover the esumated cost of all future claims and expenses which will atiach
to that unearned busimess

An analysis by segment was carnied out and determuined that an URR of £24m (2011 £2 4m) n respect of the singte
premium business (Loan Protection and Assel Finance) was requited  This was due to the expectation that future claims
experience would detenorate as a result of anti-selection caused by the PPI mis-selling judicial review

34




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED

Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

12 Insurance habihities and reinsurance assets (continued)

121 Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, changes in assumptions and sensitivity (continued)

12 1.3 Claims development tables

The development of msurance habilities provides a measure of the Company’s ability 1o estimate the ultimate value of claims

The top half of each of the following tables below illustrates how the Company’s estimate of total claims outstanding for each
accadent year has changed at successive year-ends  The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
appearing 1 the balance sheet The accident year basis 1s considered the most appropriate for the business written by the

Company

Household and domestic all nsks - gross
Accident year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs

- at end of accident year

- one year later

- lwo years later

- three years later

- four years iater

Current esiimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recognised 1n the balance sheet
Liability 1n respect of prior years

Total gross lability mcluded in the balance sheet

Household and domestic all nsks - net
Accident year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs

- at end of accident year

- one year later

- two years later

- three years later

- four years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recogmised 1n the balance sheet
Liability in respect of prior years

Total net hability included 1n the balance sheet

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Totat
151,107 161,951 174,685 139,803 174,854 802,400
146,736 153,194 168,892 130,133 . -
145,667 138,663 164,937 - - -
138,908 137,344 - ; ] ]
138,434 . ; - ; -
138,434 137344 164937 130,133 174,854 745,702

(135,952)  (134,536)  (158,238)  (115,094)  (101,139)  (644,959)
2,482 2,808 6,699 15,039 73715 100,743
4,465

105,208

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
151,107 161,951 174685 139,803 174,854 802,400
146,736 153,194 168,892 130,133 . -
145,667 138,663 164,937 - - -
138,908 137,344 - - . .
138,434 . . . - -
138,434 137,344 164937 130,133 174,854 745702

(135952) (134,536} _ (158,238)  (115094)  (101,139)  (644,959)
2,482 2,808 6,699 15,039 73715 100,743
3,850

104,593

As at the year ended 31 December 2012 the Company limited 1ts exposure to loss within iasurance operations through
pariicipation tn remnsurance arrangements The household portfolio 1s protected through a catastrophe excess of loss
arrangement which operates across both Lloyds Bankig Group General Insurance iegal entiies The reinsurance programme
was tenewed on 1 fuly 2012, with the only change in nature from the previous year being the discontinuation of aggregate loss
cover purchased 1 2011 to mitigate the effect of muluple events Amounts tecoverable from remsurers were estimated n a
mannet consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaiming the underlying policy benefits The purpose of a household
excess of the loss catastrophe reinsurance programme 1s to protect agawnst the adverse effects of large weather related events

The gross habihty of £105 208m and net liability of £104 593m shown n the above tables exclude £9 523m of unallocated

claims handling expenses.
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12

121

122

Insurance habihties and reinsurance assets (continued)

Short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, changes tn assumptions and sensitivity (continued)

12.1.3 Claims development tables (continued)

Creditor — gross and net

Acadent year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
Estimate of ultimate claims costs
- at end of accident year 52,607 99,120 70,832 44,112 18,343 285,014
- one year later 51,357 82,879 45,386 24,500 - -
- two years later 48,730 75,871 41,773 - - -
- three years later 47,153 69,211 - - - -
- four years later 46,711 - . - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 46,711 69,211 41,773 24,500 18,343 200,538
Cumulative payments to date (45,963) (65,320) (36,614) {19,851) {4,854) (172,602)
Liabihity recogmised 11 the balance sheet 748 3,891 5,159 4,649 13,489 27,936
Liability in respect of prior years 423
28,359

Total hability included 1n the balance sheet

The Company has not had any reinsurance cover in place for the current and preceding 5 years in respect of financial loss risks

The habihty of £28 359m shown 1n the above lable excludes £3 414m of unallocated claims handling expenses

Movements in insurance hiabihities and reinsurance assets

(a) Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2012 2011

Gross Remsurance Net Gross Remnsurance Net
Notfied claims 143,240 (1,366) 141,874 213,624 (1,655) 211,969
Incurred but not reported 259,930 - 29,930 47,869 - 47,869
Total at beginning of year 173,170 {1,366) 171,804 261,493 (1,655) 259,838
Cash paid for claims settled n the
year (209,488) 752 (208,736) (229,069) 290  (228,779)
Increase in Lhabilities
(see Note 20)
- anising from current year claims 225,922 - 225922 209,844 - 209,844
- ansumg from prior year claims (41,872) (1) (41,873 (69,098) (n (69,099)
Total at end of year 147,732 (615) 147,117 173,170 (1,366} 171,804
Notified claims 128,392 (615) 127,777 143,240 (1,366) 141,874
Incurred but not reported 19,340 - 19,340 29,930 - 26,930
Total at end of year 147,732 (615) 147,117 173,170 (1,366) 171,804

There has been no significant change year on year n the assumpuons and methodologies used for setting the best estimate
reserves, other than the specific adjustments made to creditor reserves to allow for the effect of economic conditions on

development patterns as described in Note 1212
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12 Insurance habilities and reinsurance assets {continued)
122  Movements in insurance habilities and reimnsurance assets (continued)
(b) Unearned premiums and unexpired short-term imsurance risks
2012 2011

Gross  Remsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net
Unearned premiums
At 1 January 277,014 (12,455) 264,559 304,298 (10,447} 293,851
Increase 1n the year
{see Note 17) 562,097 (18,383) 543,714 559,502 (27,602) 531,900
Release 1n the year
(see Note 17) (572,14%) 21,101 {551,048) (586,786) 25,594  (561,192)
At 31 December 266,962 (9,737) 257,225 277,014 {12,455) 264,559
Unexpired risk reserve
At 1 January 2,400 - 2,400 - - -
Increase n the year
(see Note 20) 9,174 - 9,174 2,400 - 2,400
Release in the year
(see Note 20) (373) - 373 - - -
At 31 December 11,201 - 11,201 2,400 - 2,400
These provisions represent the hability for short-term insurance contracts for which the Company’s obligations are not expired
at year-end The unexpired nisk provision relates to creditor policies for which the Company expects to pay claims in excess of
the related unearned premium provision

13 Provision for other habilities and charges

AL 1 January 2012

Used during the year

Statement of comprehensive income charge
- addtional provisions

- under/(over} provision from prior years

At 31 December 2012

Current
Non-current

(a) Prenmuum Rebates

In accordance with the ABI Statement of Recommended Practice a provision has been made in respect of premiums that may
be refunded in the future but on which the premiums have already been fully earned This estimate has been based upon prior
experience and also includes an amount n respect of potential rebates required for customers identified as having dual

INSUrance cover

Premuum
Rebates FSCS Levy Total
1,752 826 2,578
(7,482) (729) (8,211)
4,952 1,652 6,604
5,730 (97) 5,633
4,952 1,652 6,604
2012 2011
Total Total
4,804 2,578
1,800 -
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13 Provision for other habilities and charges (continued)
(b) Fmancial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS”) Levy
This levy relates to the amount payable to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) m the event of the failure of a
company regulated under the FSA The FSA has unul 31 March 2013 to finahise its levy n respect of 1ts financial year
2012/13, and 31 March 2014 1n respect of 2013/14 It 1s not anticipated that any further levy will be raised for 2012/13 The
maximum levy which can be raised 1s estimated to be £12 5m for the 2012 basis year The FSCS has issued its Plan and
Budget for 2013/14 and a provision of £1 7m in respect of this levy 1s held in these financial statements

14 Trade and other payables

2012 2011

Due to related parties (Note 28) 37,508 47,856
Insurance payables 18,632 20,968
Other payables and accrued expenses 1,599 1,804
Other taxes payable 7,433 9,145
At 31 December 65,172 79,773
Non-current liabilities
Included in the amounts due to related parties 1s an amount payable in respect of
the Company’s share of retirement benefit deficit (Note 16) 2,251 2,966
All trade and other payables are current liabilities

15 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax 1s calculated m full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 23% (2011
25%)

On 21 March 2012, the Government announced a reduction 1n the rate of corporation tax to 24% with effect from 1 Apnil
2012 The reduction was enacted under the Provisional Collection of Taxes Act 1968 on 26 March 2012 In addition, the
Finance Act 2012, which passed into law on 3 July 2012, included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from
24% to 23% with effect from 1 April 2013 The change n the main rate of corporation tax from 25% to 23% has resulted m a
reduction in the Company's net deferred tax hability at 31 December 2012 of £1 767m comprising a £1 767m credit included
in the income statement

The proposed further reduction n the rate of corporation tax by 2% to 21% from 1 Apnil 2014 1s expecied to be enacted
during 2013 The proposed further reduction in the rate of corporation tax to 20% by 1 April 2015 1s expected to be enacted
during 2014 The effect of these further changes upon the Company’s deferred tax balances cannot be relhiably quantified at
this stage

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account 1s as follows:

2012 2011
At 1 January 21,436 22,410
Statement of comprehensive income credit (Note 23) (922) (974)
At 31 December 20,514 21,436
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15 Deferred income tax (continued)

The movement in the deferred tax assets and habiliies duning the year without taking nto consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax junisdiction s as follows

(a) Deferred tax assels

At 1 January 2011

Statement of comprehensive income charge during 2011
Al 31 December 2011

Statement of comprehensive income charge duning 2012

At 31 December 2012

(b) Deferred tax habilities

Ar 1 January 2011

Statement of comprehensive income charge during 2011
Change 1n tax rate

At 31 December 2011

Statement of comprehensive income charge duning 2012
Change 1n tax rate

At 31 December 2012

Accelerated
capital
allowances Total
(2) @
@ (2
2 2
Equahsation
reserve and other
differences Total
22,412 22,412
728 728
(1,702) (1,702)
21,438 21,438
843 843
(1,767) (1,767
20,514 20,514

The net deferred tax provision at 31 December 2012 was £20 514m (2011 £21 436m)

The solvency regulations in the UK require the Group to establish an equalisation reserve to be utilised against abnormal future
tosses arising in certain classes of business The regulations prescribe that the reserve 1s increased every year by an amount that
1s calculated as a percentage of net premiums written for those classes during the financial year These amounts are deductible

expenses for Lax purposes The equalisation reserve 1s taxed when released

16 Retirement benefit obligations

The Company does not directly employ staff However, the Company’s share of costs relating to the Group’s defined benefit
and defined contribution schemes 1s reflected through the statement of comprehensive income in a management charge from a
fellow subsidiary {(Note 22) and on the balance sheet as a payable to related parties (Notes 14 and 28)

Full details can be found 1n the 2012 annual report and accounts of the Company's ultimate parent company Copies of the
ulumate parent company's 2012 annual report and accounts may be obtamed from the Company Secretary's Department,

Lloyds Banking Group plc, 25 Gresham Sireet, London, EC2V 7HN
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17 Net premium revenue
2012 2011
Short-term insurance contracls
- premiums receivable 562,097 559,502
- change 1n unearned premium reserve 10,052 27,284
Premuum revenue ansing from msurance contracts 1ssued 572,149 586,786
Short-term reinsurance contracts
- premiums payable (18,383} (27,602)
- change 1n unearned premium reserve (2,718) 2,008
Premium revenue ceded 10 remsurers on (nsurance contracts 1ssued (21,101) (25,594)
Net premium revenue 551,048 561,192
18 Investment income
2012 2011
Interest income 2,295 3,843
Cash and cash equivalents interest income 732 725
3,027 4,568
Included in investment income 1s £2 912m (2011 £4 452m) income from accounts placed with a parent company
Included 1n tnvestment tncome 15 £0 080m (2011 £0 042m) income from the Global Liquidity Fund which has been classified
as a related party balance 1n 2012 (Note 28)
19 Net fair value gains/(tosses) on assets held at fair valuze through profit or loss

Net farr value gainsi{losses) on assets held at farr value through profit or loss

- fair value gains
- fair value losses

2012 2011
11,394 6,557
(2) (490)
11,392 6,067

Fair value gains mclude gains anising from interest of £1 037m (2011 £0 808m) and dividends of £1 280m (2011 £0 988m)
on financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss Net fair value gams/(losses) on assets held at fair value through
profit or loss include net reahised gams of £2 812m (2011 £2 312m) and net unrealised gans of £6 252m (2011 £1 876m)

Nel fair value gains/(losses) on assets held al fair value through profit or loss do not include any net gans (2011 £0 029m) or
interest income (2011 £0 033m) in respect of an investment held 1n a Floating Rate Note issued by a fellow group subsidiary

that was acquired by the ultimate parent company on 19 January 2009 (Note 28) as 1t matured on 7 December 2011

Net fair value gains/(losses) on assets held at fair value through profit or loss includes nel gains of £0 079m (2011 £ml) and
interest income of £0 050m (2011 £nil) 1n respect of an 1nvestment held 1n a Covered Bond issued by a fellow group

subsichary
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20 Insurance claums and loss adjustment expenses

2012 2011
Gross Remsurance Net Gross Remsurance Net

Current year claims and loss

adjustment expenses 225,922 - 225,922 209,844 - 209,844
Movement in costs of prior year

claims and loss adjustment

expenses (41,872} 1) (41,873) (69,098) (1) (69,099)
Movement in the expected cost of
claims for unexpired nisks 8,801 - 8,801 2,400 - 2,400
Total claims and loss
adjustment expenses 192,851 (1) 192,850 143,146 {1) 143,145
21 Expenses by nature
2012 2011
Employee benefit expense (Note 22) 38,670 37,843
Software and other IT costs 21,959 21,666
Auditor’s remuneration
- Statutory Audit 187 100
- Non-audit services pursuant to regulation 28 28
Investment management fees 469 491
Other costs 38,094 36,503
99,407 96,631
Allocation of claims handling expenses (34,800} (34,219)
Allocation of acquisition expenses (30,541) (5,198)
Expenses for admmstration 34,066 57,214
Fees and commissions payable 178,717 178,597
Acquisition expenses 30,541 5,198
Change 1n gross deferred acquisition costs 9,203 13,295
Expenses for the acquisition of insurance contracts 218,461 197,090
252,527 254,304

Expenses consist of costs incurred directly by the Company and costs recharged to / from fellow group subsidiaries (Note 28)

In 2012 marketing and certam other expenses of £30 541m (2011 £29 658m) have been reclassified from “Expenses for
admimstration (which has been re-named from the previous title of “Expenses for marketing and administranon” accordingly)
to “Expenses for the acquisitton of nsurance contracts” to align with other Group entities to provide a clearer presentation
The prior year numbers have not been restated for this presentation

41




LLOYDS TSB GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED
Registered number 204373

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
(All amounts 1n £ thousands unless otherwise stated)

22 Employee benefit expense

2012 2011

Wages and salaries 24,148 25,452

Social secunity costs 2,972 3,151

Pension costs (Note 16) 3,046 2,241

Share based payments (Note 27) 630 678

Qther staff costs 7,874 6,321

38,670 37,843

Although the Company does not directly employ any staff, staff costs are mcurred by the Company and these have been
idenufied as part of the overall management recharge above {Note 21)

Included 1n the pension costs charge above 1s an amount of £0 953m (2011 £0 202m) representing the Company’s share of
retirement benefit obligations under IAS 19, of the Group's defined benefit penston schemes (Note 16), the balance of the
pension costs relate to defined contribution schemes

The monthly average number of staff durting the year was as follows

2012 2011
Administration and finance 683 T2
Underwriting 22 27
Clams 349 325
1,054 1,124
23 Income tax expense

2012 2011

Current income tax
- current year 27,915 45,221
- prior years (2) -
27,913 45,221
Deferred tax credit {Note 15) (922) (974)
26,991 44,247

The charge for income taxation on the profit for the year 1s based on an effective Umted Kingdom corporation taxahion rate of
24 5% (2011 26 5%) as the slandard corporation taxation rate changed from 26% to 24% effective 1 April 2012

The effective tax rate for the year 15 22 5% (2011 25 4%}

A reconciliation of the current taxation charge for the year to the charge that would result from applying the standard United
Kingdom corporation taxation rate to profit before taxation 1s given below

2012 2011
Profit before tax 120,090 174,378
Tax charge at effective UK corporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 29,423 46,210
Non-taxable income (313) (261)
Effect of reduction in deferred tax rate to 23% (2011 25%) (1,767) (1,702)
Addifional tax deduction on foans acquired under group contituity rules (352) -
Tax charge for the year 26,991 44,247
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24 Dividend per share
The Board of Directors approved total dividends payable to Lloyds TSB General Insurance Holdings Limited of £32m (£0 52
per share) during the year i respect of 2012 (2011 £132m (£2 14 per share))
The directors do not recommend any further dividend 1n respect of 2012
25 Cash generated by operations
2012 2011
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax 120,090 174,378
Adjustments for
[nvestment income and net fair value gains on assets held at fair value
through profit or loss (14,419) (10,635)
105,671 163,743
Decrease 1n mtangible insurance assets 9,203 13,295
Decrease 1n loans and receivables including insurance recervables 94,567 12,477
Decrease 1n insurance contract habilities (net) (23,220) (114,926)
[ncrease 1n provisions for other habilities and charges 4,026 1,391
Decrease 1n trade and other payables (14,601) (20,205)
Cash generated by operations 175,646 55,775
26 Contingencies and commmtments
Except as stated 1n Note 13, in the opimon of the directors, there were no matenial contingent habilities or commitments
requirmg disclosure (2011 £ml)
27 Share based payments

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company’s ultimate parent company operated the following share based
payment schemes, all of which are equity settled

Executive share option scheme

The executive share option schemes were long-term incentive schemes available to certain semor executives of Lloyds
Banking Group plc, with grants usually made annually Options were granted within Iimuts set by the rules of the schemes
relating to the number of shares under option and the price payable on the exercise of options The last grant of executive
opuons was made 1n August 2005 These options were granted without a performance multiplier and the maximum hmt for
the grant of options tn normal circumstances was three times annual salary Between March 2004 and August 2004, the
aggregate value of the award based upon the market price at the date of grant could not exceed four times the executive’s
annual remuneration and, normally, the limut for the grant of options to an executive 1n any one year would be equal t0 15
umes annual salary with a maximum performance multipher of 3 5

Performance conditions for executive options
For opnions granted in 2004
The performance condition was linked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc’s total shareholder return (calculated

by reference to both dividends and growth m share price) agamst a comparator group of 17 companies including Lloyds
Banking Group plc
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27 Share based payments (continued)
Executive share option scheme (continued)
For opuons granted tn 2004 (continued)

The performance condition was measured over a three year pertod which commenced at the end of the financial year
preceding the grant of the option and continued until the end of the third subsequent year If the performance condition was
not then met, 1t was measured at the end of the fourth financial year If the condition was not then met, the options would
lapse

To meet the performance conditions, the Lloyds Banking Group plc’s ranking aganst the comparator group was required to
be at least minth The full grant of options only became exercisable 1if the Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked first A
performance multiplier (of between mil and 100 per cent) was applied below this level to calculate the number of shares n
respect of which options granted to Executive Directors would become exercisable, and were calculated on a shding scale If
Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked below median the options would not be exercisable

Options granted to senior executives other than Executive Directors were not so hghly leveraged and, as a result, different
performance multipliers were applied to therr options For the majority of executives, options were granied with the
performance condition but with no performance multiphier

For options granted in 2005

The same conditions apply as for grants made 1in 2004, except that

e the performance condition was linked to the performance of Lloyds Banking Group ple’s total shareholder return
(calculated by reference to both dividends and growth in share price) against a comparator group of 15 companies
including Lioyds Banking Group plc,

e if the performance condition was not met at the end of the third subsequent year, the opuons would lapse, and

o the full grant of options became exercisable only if Lloyds Banking Group plc was ranked in the top four places of
the comparator group A shding scale applied between fourth and eighth posibons If Lloyds Banking Group ple
was ranked below the median {minth or below) the options would lapse

Save-As-You-Earn schemes

Eligible employees may enter into contracts through the Save-As-You-Earn schemes to save up to £250 per month and, at the
exprry of a fixed 1erm of three, five or seven years, have the oplion 1o use these savings within six months of the expiry of the
fixed term to acquire shares n the Lloyds Banking Group plc at a discounted price of no less than 80 per cent of the market
price at the start of the invitauon

Other share option plans

Lloyds Banking Group Executive Share Plan 2003

The Plan was adopted in December 2003 and under the Plan share options may be granted 1o senior employees Options
under this plan have been granted specifically to facilitate recruitment and as such were not subject to any performance
conditions The Plan s usage has now been extended to not only compensate new recruits for any lost share awards but also

10 make grants to key individuals for retention purposes with, in some instances, the grant being made subject to individual
performance conditions

Lloyds Banking Group Share Buy Out Awards

As part of arrangements to faciluale the recruitment of certain Executives, options have been granted by mdividual deed and,
where appropnate, 1n accordance with the Listing Rules of the UK Lisung Authority

The awards were granted 1n recogmtion that the Executives’ outstanding awards over shares in their previous employing
company lapsed on accepting employment with the Lloyds Banking Group
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27 Share based payments (continued)

Other share plans

Lloyds Banking Group Long-Term 1ncentive plan

The Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) mtroduced 1n 2006 15 aimed at delivering shareholder value by hinking the receipt of
shares to an improvement 1 the performance of Lloyds Banking Group plc over a three year period Awards are made within
limits set by the rules of the Plan, with the limits determming the maximum number of shares that can be awarded equating to
three times annual salary In exceptional circumstances this may increase to four imes annual salary

The performance conditions for awards made 1 April, May and September 2009 were as follows

Earmings per share (EPS) relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance was measured based on EPS growth
over a three-year period from the baseline EPS of 2008

Economic Profit (EP} relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance was measured based on the extent to
which cumulative EP targets were achieved over the three-year period

An additional discretionary award was made m Apnl, May and September 2009 The performance conditions for those
awards were as follows

Synergy Savings The release of 50 per cent of the shares was dependent on the achievement of target run rate
synergy savings 1 2009 and 2010 as well as the achievement of sustainable synergy savings of at least £1 5 billion
by the end of 2011 The award was broken down nto three equally weighted annual tranches Performance was
assessed at the end of each year agamst annual performance targets based on a trajectory to meet the 2011 target
The extent to which targets were achieved determuned the proportion of shares to be banked each year Any release
of shares was subject to the Lloyds Banking Group plc Remuneration Commutiee judging the overall success of the
delivery of the integration programme

Integration Balanced Scorecard The release of the remaining 50 per cent of the shares was dependent on the
outcome of a Balanced Scorecard of non-financial measures of the success of the mntegration mn each of 2009, 2010
and 2011 The Balanced Scorecard element was broken down mto three equally weighted tranches The tranches
were crystallised and banked for each year of the performance cycle subject to sepatate annual performance targets
across the four measurement categones of Building the Business, Customer, Risk and People and Organisation
Development

The performance conditions for awards made 1n March and August 2010 were as follows

1

EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance was measured based on EPS growth over a three-year
perniod from the baseline EPS of 2009

EP relevant to 50 per cent of the award Performance was measured based on the compound annual growth rate of
adjusted EP over the three financial years starting on 1 January 2010 relative to an adjusted 2009 Economic Profit
base

The performance conditions for awards made 1n March and September 2011 are as follows

1

11

EPS relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance target 15 based on 2013 adjusted EPS outcome

EP relevant to 50 per cent of the award The performance target 1s based on 2013 adjusted EP outcome
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27 Share based payments (continued)
Other share plans (continued)
Lloyds Banking Group long-term incentive plan (continued)
The performance conditions for awards made in March and September 2012 are as follows
1 EP relevant to 30 per cent of the award The performance target 15 based on 2014 adjusted EP outcome

1 Absolute Total Shareholder Return {ATSR) relevant to 30 per cent of the award Performance will be measured
against the annualised return over the three year period ending 31 December 2014

m Short-lerm funding as a % of total funding relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured
relative to 2014 targets

v Non-core assets at the end of 2014 relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference
to balance sheet non core assets at 31 December 2014

v Net simplification benefits relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance will be measured by reference to the
run rate achieved by the end of 2014

Vi Customer satisfaction relevant to 10 per cent of the award Performance witl be measured by reference 1o the total
number of FSA reportable complants per 1,000 customers over the three year peniod to 31 December 2014

Share Incentive Plan

Free shares

An award of shares may be made annually to employees based on a percentage of each employee’s salary in the preceding
year up to a maximum of £3,000 The percentage 15 normally announced concurrentily with Lloyds Banking Group ple’s
annual results and the price of the shares awarded 1s announced at the tme of award The shares awarded are held 1n trust for
a mandatory period of three years on the employee’s behalf, during which period the employee 15 entitled to any dividends
paid on such shares The award 1s subject to a non-market based condition if an employee leaves the Lloyds Banking Group
plc within this three year period for other than a ‘good’ reason, all of the shares awarded will be forfeited

The last award of free shares was made in 2008

Matching shares

Lloyds Banking Group plc undertakes to match shares purchased by employees up to the value of £30 per month, these
matching shares are held m trust for a mandatory period of three years on the employee’s behalf, during which period the
employee 1s entitled to any dividends paid on such shares The award 1s subject to a non-market based condition 1f an
employee leaves within this three year penod for other than a ‘good’ reason, 100 per cent of the maiching shares are forfeited
Simularly if the employees sell thewr purchased shares within three years, their matching shares are forfeited
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27

Share based payments (continued)

Other information

The charge made to the ncome statement represents the Company’s share of the cost of the above schemes  This charge has
been allocated to the Company based on the number of the Company's employees who participate m the above schemes It 1s
not practicable for the Company to provide information regarding the ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise
prices, weighted average remaming contractual life information and the number of options outstanding that 1s specific to the
Company's employees without ncurring sigmficant additional cost

Full details of the ranges of exercise prices, weighted average exercise prices, weighted average rematning contractual life
information and number of options outstanding for the above schemes overall can be found n the 2012 annual report and
accounts of the Company's ultimate parent company Copies of the ultimate parent company's 2012 annual report and
accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary's Department, Lloyds Banking Group plc, 25 Gresham Street,
London, EC2V 7HN

28

Related—party transactions

The Company’s immediate parent company 15 Lloyds TSB General Insurance Holdings Limited The company regarded by
the directors as the ultimate parent and controllng company 1s Lloyds Banking Group ple, a limited liability company
mcorporated and domiciled m Scotland, which 1s aiso the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which
group accounts are drawn up and of which the Company 15 a member Lloyds Banking Group ple financial statements in
which the Company 1s consolidated can be obtained from the Company Secretary’s Department, Lloyds Banking Group ple,
25 Gresham Street, London, EC2V 7HN

The Company’s related parties include parents, fellow subsidiaries, pension schemes of the Company’s ultimate parent
company and the Company’s key management personnel Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, which 1s determned to be the Company’s
direclors

Transactions with key management
Certain members of key management in the Company, mcluding the highest paid directar, provide services o other
companies within the Lloyds Banking Group In such cases, for the purposes of this note, figures have been included based

on an apporuonment to the Company of the total compensation earned

There were no transactions m the normal course of business that were matenal to key management or the Company other than
those disclosed as part of directors’ remuneration as disclosed below Key management compensatton comprised

2012 2011

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 483 1,261
Post-employment benefits 27 67
Share based payments 75 109
Termination benefits 32 -
617 1,437
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28

Related—party transactions (continued)
Transactions with key management (continued)
The Company’s share of the emoluments of iis directors was £483,236 (2011 £1,260,662)

Four directors exercised share options during the year (2011 1) Shares were received or receivable m respect of qualifying
service under long term incentive plans by 11 directors (2011 8)

Reurement benefits are accruing to 15 directors (2011 7) under the defined contribution scheme and ml directors {2011 ml)
under defined benefit pension schemes

The Company’s share of contributions paid to money purchase pension schemes in respect of directors’ qualifying services
was £26,841 (2011 £66,730) The highest paid directot’s scheme received £12,512 (2011 £3,762)

The Company’s share of the emoluments of 1its highest paid director was £91,477 (2011 £270,154)
The highest paid director did not exercise share options in 2012 (2011 ml)

At the year end, the mghest pad director’s accrued pension totalled £mi (2011 £ml per annum), being the pension
entitlement based on pensionable service wath the group to 31 December 2012 but payable at normal relirement age

During the year £128,000 was paid to directors as compensation for loss of office The Company’s share of this cost was
£32,000

The emoluments of M G Culmer and M A Fisher are not recharged to this Company as 1t 1s constdered that their services to
this Company are incidental to their other activities within the group

Transactions with other related parties

(a) Sales of insurance contracts and purchase of other services

2012 2011
Investment [ncome (Note 18)
- income from a parent company 2,912 4,452
- income from a fellow group subsidiary 80 -
2,992 4,452
Net fair value gains/(losses) on assets held at fair value through profit or loss
(Note 19)
- net gains n respect of debt secunities {listed) 1ssued by a fellow group subsidiary
which matured on 7 December 2011 - 62
- nel gains 1 respect of debt secunities {unhisted) 1ssued by a fellow group
subsidiary 129 -
129 62
Expenses for the acquisiion of imsurance contracts nclude
- commission payable to fellow group subsidiaries 92,952 148,021
Expenses for admimistration include
- services of key management personnel from fellow group subsidiary 585 1,437
- other management services from fellow group subsidiary 84,283 88,764
84,868 90,201
- Investment management services from fellow group subsidiary 469 491
85,337 90,692
Dividend (Note 24}
- paid to 1mmediate parent company 32,000 132,000
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28 Related—party transactions (contimued)

Transactions with other related parties

{b) Year-end balances arising from the sales of insurance contracts and purchases of products and services

Collective Investment Schemes
- investment 1n a parent company

Debt Securities
- investment n a fellow group subsidiary

Amount due from related parties (Note 8)

- due from a parent company 1n respect of a 3 year fixed rate treasury deposit with
an interest rate of 4 27% per annum which matured 1n August 2012

- due from fellow group subsidiaries i respect of insurance operattons and
management charges

Cash and cash equivalents (Nate 10)
- due from a parent company
- due from a fellow group subsidiary

Amounts due (o related parties

- due to fellow group subsidiaries in respect of insurance operations and
management charges (Note 14)

- due to a parent company m respect of group relief for income tax

2012 2011
3,364 10,237
36,107 -
) 90,579
14,945 13,293
14,945 103,872
69,343 52,751
59,570 -
128,913 52,751
37,508 47,856
73,133 45,221
110,641 93,077
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